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42 C.F.R.§ 402.]

Basis and scope.

(a) Basis. This part is based on the sections of the Act that are specified in paragraph (c) of this section.
(b) Scope. This part—

(1) Provides for the imposition of civil money penalties, assessments, and exclusions against persons that
violate the provisions of the Act specified in paragraph (c), (d), or (e) of this section; and

(2) Sets forth the appeal rights of persons subject to penalties, assessments, or exclusion and the procedures
for reinstatement following exclusion.

(c) Civil money penalties. CMS or OIG may impose civil money penalties against any person or other entity
specified in paragraphs (c)(1) through (c)(35) of this section under the identified section of the Act. (The
authorities that also permit imposition of an assessment or exclusion are noted in the applicable
paragraphs.)

(1) Sections 1833(h)(5)(D) and 1842(j)(2)—Any person that knowingly and willfully, and on a repeated basis,
bills for a clinical diagnostic laboratory test, other than on an assignment-related basis. This provision
includes tests performed in a physician's office but excludes tests performed in a rural health clinic. (This
violation may also include an assessment and cause exclusion.)

(2) Section 1833(i)(6)—Any person that knowingly and willfully presents, or causes to be presented, a bill or
request for payment for an intraocular lens inserted during or after cataract surgery for which the Medicare
payment rate includes the cost of acquiring the class of lens involved.

(3) Section 1833(q)(2)(B)—Any entity that knowingly and willfully fails to provide information about a
referring physician, including the physician's name and unique physician identification number for the
referring physician, when seeking payment on an unassigned basis. (This violation, if it occurs in repeated
cases, may also cause an exclusion.)

(4) Sections 1834(a)(11)(A) and 1842(j)(2)—Any durable medical equipment supplier that knowingly and
willfully charges for a covered service that is furnished on a rental basis after the rental payments may no
longer be made (except for maintenance and servicing) as provided in section 1834(a)(7)(A). (This violation
may also include an assessment and cause exclusion.)

(5) Sections 1834(a)(18)(B) and 1842(j)(2)—Any nonparticipating durable medical equipment supplier that
knowingly and willfully, in violation of section 1834(a)(18)(A), fails to make a refund to Medicare beneficiaries
for a covered service for which payment is precluded due to an unsolicited telephone contact from the supplier.
(This violation may also include an assessment and cause exclusion.)

(6) Sections 1834(b)(5)(C) and 1842(j)(2)—Any nonparticipating physician or supplier that knowingly and
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willfully charges a Medicare beneficiary more than the limiting charge, as specified in section 1834(b)(5)(B),
for radiologist services. (This violation may also include an assessment and cause exclusion.)

(7) Sections 1834(c)(4)(C) and 1842(j)(2) —Any nonparticipating physician or supplier that knowingly and
willfully charges a Medicare beneficiary more than the limiting charge, as specified in section 1834(c)(4)(B), for
mammography screening. (This violation may also include an assessment and cause exclusion.)

(8) Sections 1834(h)(3) and 1842(j)(2)—Any supplier of prosthetic devices, orthotics, and prosthetics that
knowingly and willfully charges for a covered prosthetic device, orthotic, or prosthetic that is furnished on a
rental basis after the rental payment may no longer be made (except for maintenance and servicing). (This
violation may also include an assessment and cause exclusion.)

(9) Section 1834(j)(2)(A)(iii)—Any supplier of durable medical equipment, including a supplier of prosthetic
devices, prosthetics, orthotics, or supplies, that knowingly and willfully distributes a certificate of medical
necessity in violation of section 1834(j)(2)(A)(i) or fails to provide the information required under section
1834(j)(2)(A)(ii).

(10) Sections 1834(j)(4) and 1842(j)(2)—

(i) Any supplier of durable medical equipment, including a supplier of prosthetic devices, prosthetics, orthotics,
or supplies, that knowingly and willfully fails to make refunds in a timely manner to Medicare beneficiaries for
services billed other than on an assignment-related basis if —
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